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State versus Joseph Dominick Urato

PROCEUEDTINGS

THE BAILIFF: All rise, the Honorable Edward
Miller presiding.

THE COURT: Thanks. Please be seated.

THE CLERK: Your ‘Honor, this is case 2010-GS-
23-7909, the State versus Joseph Dominick Urato who is
indicted for conspiracy and he's pleading to the same.

The case of 2010—GS-23—7945, Mr. Urato is indicted for
bank robbery and he's pleading to entering the bank
depository with intent to steal. In the case of 2010-GS-
23-7946, Mr. Urato is also indicted for bank robbery and
he's pleading to the same.

Sir, would you please raise your right hand.

JOSEPH DOMINICK URATO, having been duly
sworn, testified as follows:

‘Thank you.

THE COURT: Mr. Urato, in the last 24 hours,‘
have you had any drugs, alcohol or medication?

DEFENDANT URATO: No, sir.

THE COURT: Have you ever been treated for
the abuse of alcohol or drug, for mental illness or
emotional problems?

DEFENDANT URATO: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Tell me about that.
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State versus Joseph Dominick Urato

addiction ever since I was 15.
THE COURT: What kind of drugs?
DEFENDANT URATO: Cocaine, crack, Ecstasy.

THE COURT: What kind of treatment have you

‘had?

DEFENDANT URATO: Not much. I Qas supposed
to get some with the government. As backed up and as
crowded as they are, they never got around to it so I was
sent to priéon once before and never got'any-treatment,

THE COURT: Are you sober today?

DEFENDANT URATO? Yes, sir.

THE COURT: You're up here on three
indictments. The first one 1I've got is 2010-7946 alleges
you did in Greenville County, July 30, 2010, entered the
Wachovia Bank, Lewis Plaza, Greenvilile, South Carolina
with the intent to steal money, securities fof money oOr
property either by force,'infimidation or threats. Is
this a 15 year offense?

MR. GREGORY: ,A 30 year, Your Honor.

THE CQURT: Any mandatory minimum?

MR. GREGORY: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thirty vears, dc you understand
that? |

DEFENDANT URATO: Yes, Your Bonor.

THE COURT: This is.a Serious Offense. That
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State versus Joseph Dominick Urato

means if you get three convictions for Serious Offenses,
that means you're eligible for life in prison without
parole, do you understand that?

DEFENDANT URATO: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You're also up here on 2010-7945,
it alleges you did in Greenville County, July 27, 2010,
enter Arthur State Bank on North Pleasantburg Drive with
the intent to steal money by force or intimidation and
that's another 30 years and also another Serious Offense,
do you understand that?

DEFENDANT URATO: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And you're aléo up here on
2010-7909 alleges you did in Greenville County between
July 27 and July 30, 2010 you uhlawfully combined with
Deborah -Pitman Bassler for the purpose of accomplishing an
unlawful object or a lawful object by unlawful means and

that is bank robbery. Five years for that, do you

o~ . ey L

understand thét?

DEFENDANT URATO: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Understanding the nature of the
charges against you and the maximum possible punishment,
how do you want to plead?

DEFENDANT URATO: Guilty.

THE COURT: Did anybody force you 1in any way

to get you to do that? -
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DEFENDANT URATO: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Did anybody proﬁise you anything
or coerced you in any way?

DEFENDANT URATO: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You understand you have an
absolute right to a trial by jury where you would be
presumed innocent unless and until the State could prove
you guilty beyond any reasonable doubt of ea&h and every
element of the offenses that you were charged with. You
would have a right to confront and cross-ekamine the
witnesses and the evideﬁce put up against you by the
State.

You'd have a right to compel in Court all

relevant and competent evidence. in your own defense or you

can remain silent. You silence can .not be held against

you and you can never be compelled to incriminate
yourself. |

Do you understand all those rights?

DEFENDANT URATO: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you want to give up all of
those rights to enter this plea?

DEFENDANT URATO: Yes, Your Honor.

"THE COURT: You sure?

DEFENDANT URATO: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Are yocu guilty?
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State versus Joseph Dominick Urato

DEFENDANT URATO: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Are you totally satisfied with
yoﬁr lawyer?

DEFENDANT URATOQO: Absolutely.

THE COURT: Got any complaints you want to
make about how you've been treated in this case?

DEFENDANT URATS: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And have you had enough time to
feView the evidence the State has against you?

DEFENDANT URATO: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Tell us about it.

MR. GREGORY: Thank you, Your Honor. On July
27, 2010, the co-defendant Deborah Bassler walked into the
Arthur Bank on Pleasantbﬁrg Drive in Greenville County.
| She pretended to use the bathroom to make
sure the bank was clear. After she left, this defendant
entered the bank'wearing a mask and a blue bandanna around
his mouth.v.He jumped over the counter, was screaming the
whole time and said that no one would get hurt and
demanded money.

The defendant got approximately $3,400 in
cash from the teller and left the bank.

Both the co-defendant Bassler and this
defendant were arrested on July 30, 2010 after Bassler

entered the First Saver's Bank on Augusta Road. The
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‘teller there recognized her as the co-defendant in the

Arthur State Bank and she tripped a silent alarm.

According to Ms. Bassler's testimony, she
says that after she went in the First Savers she went in
the scope it out just like the Arthur State Bank. She
went back to the truck with this defendant; they started
gearing up to rob the bank and that's when the police
showed up and actually apprehended both suspects.

She gave a complete statement implicating
herself and the defendant and she was deferred sentencing
back in November. She was going to testify today. Those
are the facts, Your Honor.

THE COURT:. Well, that was one bank. Weren't
there two banks?

MR. GREGORY: There were, Your Honor. It's
the State's position that the First Savers Bank she
entered the bank and according to ?he statute entering a
bank with intent to ---

THE COURT: Wait a minute. 1I've got Arthur
State Bank and I got Wachovia.

MR. GREGORY: There should be an amended
indictment, Your Honor, that reads First Savers Bank.

THE COURT: I don't have that.

MR. CHAMBERS: Your Honor, I am aware that

they were going to amend that indictment and that it had
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been amended.

THE COURT: Wﬂich one?

MR. CHAMBERS: The Wachovia. The first one
is the -- the bank on the 27th, that one is correct,
Arthur State Bank. When they got the indictment on the
subsequent charge they put Wachovia. They did amend it
and I was shown an amended copy at some point where they
had amended it to First Savers on Augusta.

THE COURT: 7946 reads Wachovia Bank.

MR. GREGORY: I can try to track it down at

the Clerk's Office. 1I've got a copy of the amended if you

want to see it.

“THE CQURT: We just don't want to have this
indictment floating around out there.

MR. GREGORY: I agree. According to the
Clerk's Office I had noticed the new number on top of the
amended indictment. I went down to the Clerk and talked
to her. She said this was just a typo. When they were
stamping it, they were flipping through each individual
one and didn't notice that there had already been an
amended indictment. The indictment that they had down
there, she showed me, had this number scratched off and it
was the amended indictment.

THE COURT: Let me see the amended

indictment.
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MR. GREGORY: I'll be happy to send my
investigator down there to gét a copy of it.

THE COURT: Mr. Urato, I read to you the
indictment that said Wachovia Bank. Did you go rob
Wachovia?

MR. CHAMBERS: No, Your Honor.

DEFENDANT URATC: No ---

THE COURT: I'm talking to him.

MR. CHAMBERS: Sorry, Yocur Honor.

THE COURT: Well, amended indictmenf has the
same number. This is a copy, I guess. It alleges that
you did in Greenville County on July 30, 2010 enter the
First Savers Bank located at 1818 Augusta Street,
Greenville; South Carolina with the inteﬁt to steal money,
securities by force or intimidation or threats. It
carries up to 30 years. It's a Serious Offense, same
penalty as the other one.

Now, I've asked you a series of questions and
you responded to all those guestions but it referenced the
Arthur State Bank and that was in response to the Arthur
State Bank indictment and the Wachovia Bank Indictment.
But the Wéchovia Bank Indictment is obviously in error.

Do you want to change any of your previous answers to the
questions I have propounded to you with respect to this

indictment with regards to First Savers Bank?




10
.11
12
13
'14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

11

State versus Joseph Dominick Urato

DEFENDANT URATO: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you need a minute to talk to

your lawyer about this?

MR. CHAMBERS: We actually talked about this
and that's probably why neither one of us noticed the fact
that you said'Wachovia because we had talked about how the

indictment had been amended and I even tqld him how I

‘looked at the indictment. I guess what I had actually

seen was a copy because whenever I have a trial on the
docket I look on the docket and I did that today and
everything has been changed.

THE- COURT: I'm gqing to, if you have no
objection and this is entirely up to you Mr. Urato, I'm
going to mark this indictment, this copy, as-a deemed
original. TIs that agreeable with you?

DEFENDANT URATO: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I'm going to scratch through this
fypo'stamped number up there. Any problem with that?

DEFENDANT URATO: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Is everything he told me
about the facts of the case cor;ect?

DEFENDANT URATO: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I'm going to accept your guilty
plea to each of these indictments as being freely,

voluntarily and intelligently made with the advice of a

11
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vefy competeht attorney with whom you state you are
satisfied apd there is a substantial factual basis for the
plea.

MR. CHAMBERS: Your Honor, this has been a
complicated for me from a persconal standpoint. First of
all, I have not represented him from the outset. He was
represented by Nahir Patel and I inherited fhis case from
him. Every since I got the case, I've had ﬁhis sort of
ongoing back and forth with the Solicitor's Office, Mark
Moyer had the case first, about whether the Feds were
going to take the case. The FBI agent that I spoke to
numerous times told me that the Feds wanted this case and
they were going to take this case and they'never did that.

So here we are on the trial docket but thaﬁA
has let us to a lot -- I think the case would have been'on_
the trial docket a lot sooner and mY'client may haﬁe
decided to plead a lot sooner had it not been for those"
discussions with the FBI and those things over time.

In looking at this case, Your Honor, I would
ask the Court to consider that he has come in today and
taken full responsibility for what happened. He hae
nobody -- there was never any indication that a weapon was
ever presented in this case. He never did anything to
hurt anybody or try to hurt anybody and so there are a lot

of mitigating factors.
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As he indicated to you, he had a drug problem
for years and, in fact, his co-defendant ih this case will
be sentenced later and they were waiting to see how she
would testify, had a drug problem to the degree that even
when she gave her initial statement to poiice said that
she was high on crack at the time.

He has now been in jail for about a year and
a half. He has been completely drug free. ' As far‘as

client go he has been one of the most cooperative clients

'I have ever had the pleasure to work with. He is a very

smart fellow and he asks intelligent questions and he
follows questions and he has just been very good to work

with.

I tell the Court that because even at his
worst when he had this drug problem, he never set out to

hurt anybody or do anybody any harm. The second offense

he hadn't even made it out of the parking lot so he didn't

have an opportunity to do anything, but it was clear that
he didn't had a weapon. If he had one, they would have
found one when he was preparing to go into that second
Bank. So he wasn't in any position to do any harm to
anybody.

He does have a prior record. He does have
one prior bank robbery on his record which is the federal

sentence that he did and I know the Court is going to take

13
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that into consideration. He knows that he's looking at a

&

whole lot of time.

I would ask the Court to.-locock at the
mitigating factors and he's even agree to make
restitution in this case which would be very difficult for
him but he intends to do that.

I would ask the Court to consider a sentence
-- he knows he's got to do so time and I'm not asking you
to just give him a slap on the wrist, but I would ask you
to consider something in the range of seven or eight years
which he woﬁld have to serve straight time.

I also want to point out that his mother has
traveled up here. She's sitting only because she has a
cane but she's traveled up from Charleston but she's here
to support him. He has a sister here today who is seated
in the second row. His father wanted to be here but he
lives in Hawaii and that's obviously a long distance to
travel. I've spbken to his family members numefous times
on the phone and I know they will do whatever they can
once he's released to help with his drug problem.

I would also like to ask the Courﬁ to
recommend ATU for him'and I think that would be good.

THE COURT: How many days has he been in jail

and what's his record?

MR. GREGORY: He's been in jail 536 days.
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Your Honor, his prior record is 1994 DUS, 1997 habitual
traffic offender. In 1999 we have two counts of armed
robbery. I think it was the same plea, ana it was also a
possession of a weapon during the commission of a violent
qrime that was associated with that robbery. 2003,
smuggling contraband into a prison.

THE COURT: The armed robbery was the federal
case?

MR. GREGORY: Yes, Your Honor. There was two
counts of that in which he was sentenced to 138 months.

THE COURT: Anything you want to tell me.

DEFENDANT URATO: Just that I'm sorry and I
wish I didn't have a drug problem. I wish I could get
some help. |

THE COURT: You on federal probation?

DEFENDANT URATO: Yes, Your Honor.

MR. CHAMBERS: I think his mother would like

to speak.

THE COURT: Yes, ma'am, state your name for
the record.

SPEAKER: (Inaudible) I've dealt with people
with substance abuse. If they don't get help, they're
never going to get cured. He was released from prison
where he was going to a very good doctor, he was told he

couldn't go to (inaudible). He was going to therapy and

15
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the doctor couldn't relate to him. I have a daughter here
who is bi-polar. For 17 years I‘fought and I knew what to
do for him. Joey was too far away from me. Today she
goes to a therapist and she takes her medication, but she
had a drug problem (inaudible), but there was somébody
there that fought for her because she was worth saving and
so is he. I just wanted you to know that. There are a
lot of people going through the same thing as I am. If

you're going to put him away, he needs to be put in an

institution.

THE COURT: All right, thank you. Is there
any vicfim input?

MR. GREGORY: The wvictim had been notified
and would like restitution and the representatives from
the Arthur State Bank are in the qourtroom.

THE COURT: I'll give them the opportunity to
speak if they want.

kNo response.)

Well, Mr. Urato, you are an intelligent
person and you clearly have a drug addiction,'but we see

lots of people with drug addictions in here and with

mental illness. That's what we deal with for the most
part. I'm going to give you 30 years, provided upon 18
years. The balance is suspended, probation for three,

restitution pursuant to the order, five straight on the
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conspiracy concurrent with 30, suspended on probation
concurrent with the‘other one.

Good luck to you.

I got to put conditions on your probation.
Mr. Urato, phe condiﬁions on your probation will include
substance abuse counseling, random drug and alcohol

testing and required to pay $500 to the Public Offender

'Fund for your attorney.

Thank you very much. -

---END OF TRANSCRIPT RECORD-~-

17
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I, the undersigned Caroline Hiskell, Official
Court Reporter for the Thirteenth Judicial Circuit of the
State of South Carolina, do hereby certify that the
foregoing is a true, accurate, and complete transcript of
record of all the proceedings had and evidence introduced
in the trial of the captioned case, relative t§ appeal, in
the Court of General Sessions, Greenville, South Carolina
on the 17th of January, 2012. |

I do further certify that I am neither of

kin, counsel, nor interest to any party hereto.

) A
A o

A4

Caroline Hiskell
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i ey P\u‘_ and 5en§«uam\§¢

iii.
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9.  State clearly the rjlief you seek in filing this application:

I wawT [Dye_mon vielewr 5/ % /55% That was

—Hc‘__m._h‘i \Mea R \Pcats Aetal :xNkwng and e
QL‘\"’*L\ oF "\\l_, Ftak"\ d\ahq-e,s &, Sems Tmg AS Co—che

20. t& you now under sentence from any other court that you have not challenged?
0
" Revised 3/2003 .
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) - I
) ~ VERIFICATION
County of 1)

L

I, ;j_c_éﬁﬂmnmmtc\( u.rcATO o , being duly sworn_ -
upon my oath, depose and say that I have subscribed to the foregoing application; that I know the

contents thereof; that it includes every ground known to me for vacating, setting aside or -
correcting the conviction and sentence attacked i in this application; and that the matters and

-allegations therem set forth are true . /uj// j z

SWORN to and subscnbed before me this th
day of m:\\'i . JAD2

@s)

My Commission Expires: __E](Q}{_AH_Z‘_DZ_D__ ,



APPLICATION TO PROCEED WITHOUT PAYMENT
OF COSTS AND AFFIDAVIT
IN SUPPORT THEREOF

I, S \oscv\&tb_l.h-m” , hereby apply for leave to

proceed in this action without prepayment of fees or costs or security therefor. In support of my
application I declare under penalty of perjury that the following facts are true:

(1) [ am the applicant in this action and [ believe I am entitled to redress.

- (2) Because of my poverty I am unable to pay the costs of said proceeding or give

security thereof. / :

Applicant

SWOEV or affirmed to and subscribed before me {fs

N2 day of ma¥

3 Nataryéublic t :
My Commission Expires: _mﬁs’,lla‘_mz&__

25




26

S Gce, Loek. T owsT: WC -\
.0.Box Q05
pwosente , S-C
Q472

2012-CP-23- (36l

LHARLESTON $C' 28

diz ol
X4

fud
sss e

s

@,
T
MAY 1 4 2012 §§g§
MAIL ROOM N e
UEBER C.l.

$RUL . \:\)?C_\Lcwg;cmevz
é‘tﬁew\L\\G way Cleel or Couer

305 ,eﬁs‘f ety S"\'E’G&T

' al 2660) i
;%’g\.ﬂl\{".:\i.%' ¢ 5 ‘ L;lIllfl%‘ﬁu”uu"”lJilllul”l’n”nl'l’lllllﬂl{’!" ) i

>



IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
C.A. No. 2012-CP-23-3617

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE

Joseph Dominick Urato,
S.C.D.C. No. 349299,

RETURN
v.
State of South Carolina,

)

)

)

)

)

)

)
Applicant, ) -

)

)

)

)

)

Respondent. )

)

In response to the post-conviction relief (PCR) application filed May 31, 2012, the
Respondent would show this Court:
L
. The Applicé.nt is incarcerated with the South - Carolina Department of Corrections
pursuant to the Greenville County Clerk of Court’s orders of commitment. The Greenville
County Grand Jury indicted the Applicant at the July 2011 term of General Sessions for two (2)
counts of bank robbery (2010-GS-23-7945; -7946) and conspiracy (2010-GS-23-7909). Randall
L. Chambers, Esquire represented the Applicant.

On January 17, 2012, the Applicant pled guilty. The Honorable Edward W. Miller
sentenced the Applicant to concurrent terms of thirty years suspended on sérvice of eighteen
years and three years probation for one count of bank robbery,! thirty years suspended during
probation for the second count of bank robbery, and five years for conspiracy. The Applicant did

not appeal.

Attached herewith and incorporated herein by reference are the records of the Greenville

12010-GS-23-7946.
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County Clerk of Court regarding the subject convictions and the Applicant’s records from the
South Carolina Department of Corrections. The plea transcript will be forwarded upon receipt.
1L
In his application for post-conviction relief the Applicant alleges he is being held in

custody unlawfully for the following reasons:

1. Ineffective assistance of counsel.
a. “Lawyer advised me that if I plead I would get a 10 yrs nonviolent
sentence.”

2. Involuntary Guilty Plea.
- IL

The Respondent asserts the Applicant’s allegation that his attorney was iﬁeffective is
without merit. The Respondent asserts the Applicant’s attorney rendered effective assistance
well within the standard of “reasonablenéss within professional norms” forva defense attorney.

| Where ineffective assistance of counsel is allegedy as a ground for relief, the Applicant

must prove that ‘“counsel’s conduct so undermined the proper fqnctioning of the adversarial
process that the trial cannot be relied on as haviﬁg produced a just result.” Strickland v.
Washingﬁm, 466 U.S. 668, 686, 104 S. Ct. 2052, 2064-(’1984); Butler v. State, 286 S.C. 441,
442, 334 S.E.2d 813, 814 (1985), .

The proper measure of performarnce is whether the attorney provided representation
within the range of competence required in criminal cases. - The courts presume counsel
“rendered adequate assistance and madeA all significant decisions in the exercise of reasonable'

professional judgment.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 690, 104 S. Ct. at 2066. The Applicant must

overcome this presumption in order to receive relief. See Cherry v. State, 300 S.C. 115, 118, 386

S.E.2d 624, 625 (1989).



A two-pronged test is used in evaluating allegations of ineffective assistance of counsel.
First, the applicant must prove counsel’s performance was deficient.- Under this prong, attorney

.performance is measured by its “reasonableness under prevailing professional norms.” Cherry v.

State, 300 S.C. at 117, 386 S.E.2d at 625 (quoting Strickland, 466 U.S. at 688, 104 S. Ct. at
2065). Second, counsel’s deficient performance must have prejudiced the Applicant such that
“there is a reasonable probability that, but for counsel’s unprofessional errors, the result of the
proceeding would have been different.” Cherry, 300 S.C. at 117-18, 386 S.E.2d at 625. “A\

reasonable probability is a probability sufficient to undermine confidence in the outcome of

trial.” Johnson v. State, 325 S.C. 182,.186, 480 S.E.2d 733, 735 (1997).

- The Respondent submits the Applicant cannot satisfy either requirement of the Strickland
v. Washington test. However, the allegation of ineffective assistance of counsel probably raises

questions of fact that cannot be conclusively refuted by4the record. The Respondent requests an

evidentiary hearing to fully resolve this issue. See Sharper v. State, 279 S.C. 264, 265, 305

S.E.2d 247, 248 (1983) (citing Norman v. S‘tate,‘ 276 S.C. 278,277 S.E.2d 707 (1981)).
| Iv.
The Applicant’s assertion that his guilty plea was in;foluntary is without merit. In post-
conviction relief cases, an apl-jlicant'asserting a constitutional violation' must frame th‘e‘ issue as
one of ineffective assistance of counsel. See Al-Shabazz v. Sfate, 338 S.C. 354, 363, 527 S.E.2d

742, 747 (1999). An Applicant who pleads guilty on the advice of counsel may collaterally

attack the plea only by showing that (1) counsel was ineffective and (2) there is a reasonable .

probability that but for counsel’s errors, the Applicant would not have pled guilty and would

have insisted on going to trial. Roscoe v. State, 345 S.C. 16, 20, 546 S.E.2d 417, 419 (2001)

29



30

(citations omitted). An Applicant alleging his guilty plea was induced by ineffective assistance
of counsel must prove that counsel’s advice was not “within the range of competence demanded

of attorneys in criminal cases.” Hill v. Lockhart, 474 U.S. 52, 56, 106 S. Ct. 366, 369 (1985);

Bennett v. State, 371 S.C. 198, 204, 638 S.E.2d 673, 675 (2006)'.

To find a guilty plea is voluntarily and knowingly entered into, the record must establish

the applicant had a full understanding of the consequences of his plea and the charges against

him. See Boykin v. Alabama, 395 U.S. 238, 243-44, 89 S. Ct. 1709, 1712 (1969). In Boykin,
the United StateS‘Sunreme Conrt held that before a court can accept a guilty plea, a eriminal
defendant must be advised of the constiﬁtional rights he is waiving. [d. at 243, 89 S. Ct. at
1712, .Sbeciﬁcally, the aecused= must be an/are of the privilege against self-incrimination, the

nght to a Jury trial, and. the nght to. confront one’s accusers. Id Moreover, a criminal defendant

"entermg a guilty plea “must be aware of the nature and cruc1a1 elements of the. offense the

maximum and any mandatory minimum penalty, and the nature of the constitutional nghts being
waived.” Pittman v. State, 337 S.C. 597, 599, 524 S.E.2d 623, 624 (1999) (citation omitted). A
criminal defendant’s knowing and voluntary waiver of statutory -or constitutional rights in a

guilty plea “must be established by a complete record, and may be accomplished by colloquy

between court and defendant, between court and defendant’s counsel, or both.” Roddy v. State,

339 S.C. 29, 34, 528 S.E.2d 418, 421 (2000) (citing State v. Ray, 310 S.C. 431, 437, 427 S.E.2d

171, 174 (1993)).

When determining issues relating to guilty pleas, the court will consider the entire record,

including the transcript of the guilty plea, and the evidence presented at the post-conviction relief

hearing. Anderson v. State, 342 S.C. 54, 57, 535 S.E.2d 649, 657 (2000) (citing Harres v. Leeke,
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282 S.C. 131, 318 S.E.2d 360 (1984)).

The Respondent submits the record fully suppbrts the knowing and voluntary nature of
the Applicant’s plea. However, allegations regarding ineffective assistance of counsel and the
voluntariness of thé plea may raise a question of fact that is not conclusively refuted by the

record. Accordingly, the Respondent requests an evidentiary hearing to fully resolve this issue.

_Sgg Sharper v. State, 279 S.C. at 265, 305 S.E.2d at 248 (1983).
| | V.
The Respondent denies each allegation not expressly admitted, qualified or explained.
VI.
WHEREFORE, having made its Return, the Respondent requests that a hearing be held

and counsel appointed to represent the Applicant.
' )

Respectfully submitted,

ALAN WILSON
Attorney General

JOHN W. McINTOSH ,
Chief Deputy Attorney General

SALLEY W. ELLIOTT |
Senior ‘Assistant Deputy Attorney General

KAREN C. RATIGAN
Assistant Deputy Attorney General

P.O. Box 11549
Columbia, S.C. 29211

By: ) -
Attorneys for Res!aonden() :

August 3\ ,2012
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE )
)
) 2012-CP-23-3617
' )
JOSEPH DOMINICK URATO, 349299 )
‘ )
Applicant, )
) A
Vs ) AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE BY MAIL
)
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, )
)
Respondent. )
)

1. Iam an employee of the Respondent in the above-captioned action.

2. Regular communication by mail exists throughout the State of South Carolina and that this is a
proper circumstance of service by mail.

3. [Ihave this day éerved a copy of the Return in the above-captioned matter on the following person
by depositing same in the United States mail, postage prepaid:

Joseph Dominick Urato, 349299
Lieber Correctional Institution
Post Office Box 205
Ridgeville SC 29472

DATED this 31st day of August, 2012.

g N
Jud} A. CgCarey, Legal As(ﬁstant
For Respondent
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\

CCURT OF COMMON PLEAS
2012-Cp-23-3617

ORIGINAL

TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF GREENVILLE

JOSEPH DOMINICK URATO
APPLICANT

vS.

RESPONDENT

August 28, 2013
Greenville, South Carolina

BEFORE:

THE HONORABRLE ROBIN B. STILWELL, Judge.

APPEARANCES:
SUSANNAH ROSS, ESQ.
Attorney for the Applicant

KAREN C. RATIGAN, ESQ.
Attorney for the Respondent

APRIL HERRON
Official Court Reporter
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JOSEPH URATO
Direct By Ms. Ross_
Cross By Ms. Ratigan
RANDY CHAMBERS
Direct By Ms. Ratigan

Cross By Ms. Ross
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THE COURT: Yes, ma'am.
MS. RATIGAN: Thank you, Your Honor, may it please

the Court. This is the case of Joseph Urato vs. The State

of South Carolina. The docket number is 2012-CP-23-3617.

The Applicant was indicted for two counts of bank robbery
and one count of conspiracy. He was represented on these
charges by Mr. Chambers. On January 17th of 2012 he pled

guilty before Judge Miller. He received concurrent

- sentences of 30 years suspended to the service of 18 years

and three yearé probation for one count of bank robbery,
30 years suspended for the second count of bank robbery
and five years for conspiracy. He did not file an appeal.
And The State's ready to proceed.

- THE COURT: All right, Ms. Ross.

MS. ROSS: Thank you, Your Honor. We firét‘move
pursuant to Section 17-27-70 that the reply was not filed
within 30 days. And then move for summary judgment for
us. The application was filed 5/31/12 and the reply
8/31/12.

THE COURT: All right. Are you asking for a
dismissal pursuant to Rule 56 under the Rules of Civil
Procedure?

MS. ROSS: We just -- actually I'm going under
Section 17-27-70.

THE COURT: Okay.
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MS. ROSS: Which says that that must be filed. But
56 is for the summary judgment, yes.
THE COURT: Okay. I believe there's a long standing

preference under the law for matters to be resolved on the

-merits as opposed to a summary judgment fashion. In this

instance if, in fact, there was a filing of the return was
some deal late, I find that it has visited no prejudice
upon the Applicant in this instance. And therefore, I
respectfully deny your motion.

MS. ROSS: Thank you, Your Honor. Then we'd call
Joseph Urato.,

THE CLERK: .Place your left hand on the Bible, raise
your right hand.

JOSEPH URATO, after being duly sworn, testified

as follows:

THE CLERK: Thank you, may be seated. State your
full name for the record.

THE WITNESS: Joseph Dominick Urato.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. ROSS:

Q Okay, Mr. Urato, in your application you've alleged
ineffective assistance of counsel. Can you briefly state
thé basis for that allegation?

A The basis for that was before I walked into the

courtroom, I was dressed to pick a jury. I planned on
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JOSEPH URATO-DIRECT BY MS. ROSS
going to trial. I wanted to go to trial. Mr. Chambers
walked in and said he had a deal for me for ten years if I
pled right now. I asked him if it was violent or
non-violent? He said he wasn't sure, he said he would go
check. He went back out of the room, I guess he came into
the courtroom and came back in and said it was
non-violent.

And I said, Where do I sign then?

He said, I will be right back.

He went‘back out, about 15 minutes later he came back
with é paper. I did not read them, I took his word for
it, signed the paper work expecting to go out there
getting a ten year deal.

Q Would you have gone to trial but for that 10 year

~deal?

A Absolutely.

Q Now, did -- why didn't you appeal?

A I did appeal. I wrote a letter to The Clerk of Court
when I was at Kirkland. I got a letter back, a copy from

the Clerk of Court saying that they filed it. But when I

filed the return it says that I never did an appeal. But

I have a copy of that with me right now.

Q Okay. Can you show me the copy?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q Okay. Do you want me to put it in evidence?
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" JOSEPH URATO-DIRECT BY MS. ROSS

A Yes, ma'am.

(WHEREUPON, Applicant's Exhibit No. 1 was marked for

identification only.)

MR. URATO: I have one more thing to say if I may"?
BY MS. ROSS:
Q You can.
A Also, I wrote the South Carolina Court of Appeals. I
don't know if I was supposed to or not but this was the
letter they had sent back to me. Then when I received
that letter I had wrote Mr. Chambers after I received that
letter and never heard anything back for him.

MS. ROSS: Let's go ahead and put this in as well.
Just mark them as one exhibit. Then, can we make copies
for him for his file?

You want to make copies for your file?
A If you feel I need iﬁ.
Q I don't think you do.

Okay, just one.

THE COURT REPORTER: All of these as one?

MS. ROSS: Yes.

Your Honor, I ask that these be moved into evidence
at this time.

THE COURT: Okay, Ms. Ratigan --

Ms. Ross, is that Exhibits one and two?

MS. ROSS: I just made them one Exhibit.

39
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JOSEPH URATO-DIRECT BY MS. ROSS

THE COURT: Okay, good enough.

MS. RATIGAN: I don't have any objection.

THE COURT: All right, without objection, the same is
moved into evidence without objection.

(WHEREUPON, Applicant'é Exhibit No. 1 was admitted

into evidence.)
BY MS. ROSS:
0 So, those are all now in evidence regarding your

appeal. Did you have any other issues regarding the

Indictment?

A~ Yes. I wasn't fully aware or understood what they
meant when they tried to -—‘when they said they deemed
the -- the Indictment that they had the original

Indictment. I was under the impression I was getting the
ten years. So, when they asked me did I have a problem
with it, I believe heAasked me twice.

I said, No, I don't have a problem with it.

Because, I mean,‘I was expecting to gét the 10 years.
So, I thought we were just going through the formal
motions of the court proceedings. But apparently that
wasn't so. But I've come to -- what I don't understand as
what that is, it didn't go in front of the Grand Jury.
How can I plead to an Indictment that didn't go in front
of the Grand Jury? And no one stopped it. I mean, I'm

not a lawyer, I don't know these things. I mean, someone
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JOSEPH URATO-DIRECT BY MS. ROSS

should have at least briefed me or let me know what I was

doing.

Q Briefly explain what was the problem with the

Indictment?
A From what I understand, the problem with the
Indictment originally was they were saying it was a

Wachovia Bank. And that's what I thought they were

fixing. Because I kept saying, I -have nothing to do with

a Wachovia Bank. Then they switched it to -- it was
attempted robbery, origihally: It was never bank robbery,
I never entered a bank. Sé, I was saying I didn't rob
thét bank or even enter that bank. And they said, Well;"
they sWitched it to the First Savers Bank. Bécausé
apparently while me and my co-defendant were separated,
she had wént into the First Savers Bank. Which I wasn't
aware of at the time. And thét would have came out if we

went to trial. Because I.would have testified to that.

" But what happened was they changed it from attempted

robbery to bank robbery. I never entered thatvbank} I
never robbed that bank.

So, my whole grief with this whole thing is how am I
in SCDC for robbing a bank that was never robbed? If we
took the bank tellers or the bank president and théy got
on the stand right now and asked them if their bahk was

ever robbed, they would say no. And that would be the
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10
JOSEPH URATO-DIRECT BY MS. ROSS

truth because it was never robbed. So how am I being
charged with a bank that was never charged [verbatim]?
) So, you're saying that amended Indictment doesn't
give subject matter jurisdiction éf that charge?

A No, ma'am. No, ma'am.

Q Are there any other allegations regarding the PCR?
A -No.

0 All right.
A One more thing, I take that back, I'm sorry. I was
aléo under the impression that I was doing the
non-violent, it's a 65 percent. .Why it's 85, I guess
because of a code but.I'm doing 85 percent seﬁténce. I'm
doing a non—violenﬁ 85. 1I've. never even heard of a

nonfyioient 85. I've always done federal:time. It's real

4 plan and simple. I don't mean to be -- please, I didn't

mean the way. that sounded, I'm sorry. But I have been
arrested before, I won't deny that,}I have made mistakes,
I'm not perfect. But I was under the’impression of the
federal guidelines; I'm not familiér with The State.
That's what I‘meantuté say. I'm not familiar with the
state statues,»I‘mAmore'familiarxwith the federal
guidelines than the state statute.

MS. ROSS: If there's nothing further, then answer
any gquestions that The State has for you. \

CROSS-EXAMINATION
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11
JOSEPH URATO-CROSS BY MS. RATIGAN
BY MS. RATIGAN:
Q So, the plea, when you admitted you were guilty and

you said that you were absolutely satisfied with

Mr. Chambers and you agreed with the facts, was that all
because you thought you were getting that ten years?

A Yes, ma'am, it was.

0 Okay. And Mr. Chambers promised yoﬁ'if you pled
you'd get that ten years?

A Yes.

Q Okay. Well, at one point the Judge asked you if
anyone promised you anything to get you to plead guilty
and you said no. Why didn't you tell the Judge, Well

Mr. Chambers promised me I would get ten years?

A Because I was told not to. I was told that when you
go out there, don't admit that you were promised anything,
just go through the motions.

Q And you and Mr. Chambers, had you reviewed the
evidence including your Co—defendaht's statements?

A Yes.

Q But your téstimony is you would have gone to trial
but for this plea offer?

A Yes.

.Q Okay.

MS. RATIGAN: That's all I have, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right, any redirect?

43
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JOSEPH URATO-CROSS BY MS. RATIGAN

MS. ROSS: No.

THE COURT: All right, Mr. Urato, you may step down,
thank you. I appreciate you being here.

MR. URATO: Thank you, I appreciate it.

THE COURT: Anything further from the Applicant?

MS. ROSS: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. RATIGAN: The State would call Mr. Chambers.

THE CLERK: Place your left hand on the. Bible, raiSe
your right.

RANDY CHAMBERS, after being duly sworn,

testified as follows:

THE CLERK: Please be seated. State your name for
the record. .

THE WITNESS: My name is Randall Lee Chambers.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. RATIGAN:
Q Mr. chambers, were you appointed in this case or were
you retained?

Appointed.

Did you file the usual discovery motions?

I did.

Did you receive those materials‘from The State?
I did. |

Did you review them with your client?
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RANDALL CHAMBERS-DIRECT BY MS. RATIGAN

A I did.

Q Did those materials include a statement from the
Co-defendant?

A It did.

Q Did you review with your client the impact of the
Co-defendant's statement would have on your ability to

defend him, basically?

- A That among a great many other things, yeah.

Q Did he tell you kind of his version of what happened
with all these charges?

A He did.

Q Did The State ever -- well let me back that up. Did
he authorize you to engage in plea negotiations or was it
going to be a trial from the start?

A Well no, it wasn't going to be a trial from the

start. Most of the time that I represented Mr. Urato, our.

discussions centered around his desire for the charges to
go federal. Because obviously being involved in a bank
robbery, the feds could have taken this case and
prosecuted it. And that was what he wanted to do. If I
recall, he had some other charges that were pending in
Charleston, I want to say. And he put me in touch with an
FBI agent in Charleston. And I spoke with this FBI agent
on several occasions. This FBI agent did want the

charges. I mean, apparently Joseph was working with them
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RANDALL CHAMBERS-DIRECT BY MS. RATIGAN

or doing something with them. But at‘any rate, they
wanted his cooperation and participation. And they wanted
those charges.

The FBI agent told me that he was going to speak to
the AUSA down there, and I don't know whether he did or
not. I spoke to Mark Moyer who was the Solicitor that's
prosecuting the case a lot of times. And about the case
going federal. And basically what he told me was, Hey, I
got these cases assigned to me, I'm going to prosecute it
until fhe feds take it. If the feds want it, they can
take it, I don't have any control over it. $So, most of
our discussions was about that..

Néw, we did talk a lot about the facts of the case.
And we were going to go trial. I wouldn't say that it was
our plan to go to trial from the beginning but certainly
up until the day of the trial, he's right we were on the
trial docket that day. He was dressed out, we were ready
to go to trial. I went back and had a discussion with him
and essentially told him that despite the best efforts
that I would give him, that I believed that the evidence
in this case was overwhelming against him and that he
would be convicted. So, at that point, based on my
recommendation, he made the decision to plead guilty.

Q Now, did Mr. Moyer ever make any kind of offer in

this case?
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15
RANDALL CHAMBERS-DIRECT BY MS. RATIGAN

A You know, I honestly deon't remember. And the counsel
for Mr. Urato can bear this out. That's a file that's
maintained by the Public Defender's Office. They have not
been able to locate the file. I wasn't able to go back
and look at it. This was jusf a case where Mr. Urato is
one of those clients that stand out. I remember him very
well. But I honestly don't remember if Mr. Moyer ever
made a specific plea offer or not. I talked to him a lot
but I don't remember whether there was a plea cffer.

Q Okay. Do you recall -- Mr. Urato testified that the
day of the trial‘you came to him and said you had a ten
year, non-violent deal if he pled guilty. Do you recall
having that conversation with him?

A No, I didn't have that conversation with him. What I
talked to him about, again, I reiterated té him that I
£hought they had a very good case. I'told him, as I had
told ‘him before, that if he went to trial, I believe he
would be convicted. And he would be convicted of bank
robbery, not just attempted baﬁk robbery. It's .true,
évidence was such that he never went into a bank but that

he was acting in concert with the co-defendant and that's

what she was going to testify to: And there was also some
other physical evidence of things that corroborated what
she would have said.

And I indicated to him that I believed that he, in
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RANDALL CHAMBERS-DIRECT BY MS. RATIGAN

all likelihood, despite my best efforts, be convicted.
That there was a good likelihood, even with Judge Miller
presiding, that he would get somewhere around the maximum
sentence if he went to trial. And I think I probably did
say to him that I was going to try and that I thought we
had a chance at a ten year sentence. And if you look at
the transcript, I believe I asked for seven or eight,
thinking that the Judge would add‘a couple'of'yeqrs'to it
and we-had a good shot at a ten year sentence.- Bqt I
never told‘him that there was~é deal fpr,that.

| I certainly never.told him to ansWer any of the
questions untruthfully when he was ésked those questions
by the Judge. And I.will tell you that Mr. Urato is
probably one of the most intelligent and I would say
street savvy people that I have ever represented. So, I
know that he was sophisticated enough to not fall into a
trap like that.
0 ~Did you explain to him he would.be pleading guilty
without a recommendation if he pled that day?
A I did explain that to him. And I told him, again, I
did say, I will try really hard, I think there's a chance
that we could get somewhere around ten years. And if you
look at the transcript from the plea, I spoke quite a bit
in trying to advance matters in mitigation and try to get

as good a sentence for Joseph as I could. I'd also add
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RANDALL CHAMBERS-DIRECT BY MS. RATIGAN

that in addition to talking to him as many times as I did,
I had probably a dozen of conversations with his father
who is a lawyer in Hawaii. Who was also talking to Joseph
and advising him. And his father had said to me, Joseph
needs to plead guilty. So, I mean, there was a lot of
discussion and things, not only with Joseph, but with his
father who is a lawyer that lives in Hawaii about what was
going to happen in this case.

Q And the last question, it's clear from the plea
transcript that y'all went ahead and amended one of the
Indictments that day.

A Well, you know, I don't remember precisely that
happening. My recollection is that it had already been
amended. Not that I agreed to an amendment. Because, you

know, it's my practice to always look at the Indictment

before a trial starts. And I had been given a copy of the

Indictment that was correct. It had been amended to have
the correct bank on there. But they weren't able to
produce that that day. And I remember that the Judge had
some concern about that and he addressed it on the record.
Listen, if I made a mistake on the Indictment, then

the Judge should grant the‘PCR and let Joseph have énother
trial. But my recollection is that I had seen the amended
Indictment, I didn't think there was anything wrong with

it. But if I made a mistake on that, give him another
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RANDALL CHAMBERS-DIRECT BY MS. RATIGAN
trial.
0 Did you talk to Joseph about this whole amended
Indictment issue?
A You know, I don't think we had. any discussion prior

to that, no. I mean, I think he's right. I think it all
happened when we were out here in court.
0 At some poiﬁt in the transcript the Judge basically
asked your client if he's okay with it and he says he is.
Did y'all talk about it while it was transpiring actually
in the courtroom?
A Probably.
Q Did your client give you any kind of hesitance about
amending it and going forward, did he have any problem
with it?
A I don't remember that, no.
MS. RATIGAN: That's all I have, Your Honor.
.. THE .COURT: Cross-examination.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MS. ROSS:

Q Okay, just -- so you don't have the file with you,
right?

A I don't know what happened to it.

Q And so, you can't produce the discovery or show any

evidence of the amended Indictment that had gone to the

Grand Jury?
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A No, I mean, I remember thaf it happened. And the
reason that I remember that, frankly, is I refreshed my
memory in looking at the plea transcript. And that's what
I said to Judge Miller in the plea transcript was that I
had seen a copy of the amended Indictment. I don't
imagine I wouldn't have said that if that weren't true.

0 All right. Now, as far as -- were you pleading off
the trial docket?

A Yeah.

Q And so, Mr. Urato had wanted a trial despite his
father's advice and everyone's advice to plead guilty?

A Yeah, I mean, he had maintained, just as he said here
a few minutes ago, that, I think it was his girlfriend, at
any rate they were in town together, that she had
committed this robbery without his knowledge. That they
were in town together. And that she had committed this
robbery without his knowledge. But that wasn't what she
said. She had given a statement which he and I had gone
over. And seems like there was another witness or
somebody that saw him in a parking lot, I don't remember.
But I just remember, you know, I am -- listen I like to
try cases, I try lots of cases. I've probably tried this
year, 15 cases. And I especially like to try cases that I
think I can win.

I remember specifically this was one I didn't think I
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RANDY CHAMBERS-CROSS BY MS. ROSS

was going to win. And I didn't want him to get maxed out
by the Judge. So, it was my opinion that they had an
overwhelming case against him and that's what I told him.
But yeah, I mean, he always maintained that -- that she
did that without his knowledge.
Q Okay. And then you testified earlier that if's guite
possible that you might have told him that you'd ask for
the ten years from that?
A I did tell him thati I mean, I said that I believe
that I've got a shot at getting a ten year sentence for
you.
MS. ROSS: All right, I got nothing further.
' THE COURT: Any redirect?

MS. RATIGAN: No redirect. And we rest and ask

'~ Mr. Chambers be excused.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you, appreciate it.

All right. Okay.

Mr. Urato, I'm going to respectfully deny your
Post—qonviction Relief Application. I've had the
opportunity to review the transcript of record. And I am
compelled to assume that while you were under oath and you
answered the‘questions that the Judge posed at the time of
the sentencing hearing, that you were being honest. I'm
constrained by the record in that regard. And it's clear

from the record that the Judge advised you of the maximum
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possible penalty that you could have received under the
law for these offenses. And the maximum possible penalty
that ybu could have received under the law for these
offenses was substantially more than the actual sentence
that was handed down. When you look at those charges and
the penalties in the aggregate. |

Not withstanding what con&ersations you may have had
with your counsel before the time of the plea, you made a
specific representation to the Court that there were ns
promises extended to you in which you relied to enter the
plea. And furthermore, you acknowledged your guilt on the
record. - You waived all of your Constitutional rights.

And the Court found that you had entered into the plea
freely and voluntarily. " And based on my reQieonf the
transcript, in context with the testimony that has been
offered into the record today, I find that you entered
that plea freely and voluntarily.

In a Post-conviction Relief Application, you have the
burden -~ the burden by the preponderance of the evidence
to demonstrate that counsel's representation was
deficient. And if so, that that deficiency materially
effected the charge and'or the conviction. In this
instance I find that you've not met the burden of proof.
It's one thing to say it, it's another thing to prove it.

And I find that you've failed in your burden to prove it
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by a preponderance of the evidence today. So, thank you
for being here and I wish you luck.

MS. ROSS: Judge, if you could just briefly address
the appeal issue as well. I haven't checked the date on
his notice of appeal but that might just help.

THE COURT: Well, the question is, I didn't hear -- I
have to deny that because I didn't hear any evidence that
that -- that counsel, that you requested counsel to make
that appeal for you. And under certain circumstances, I
can order that there be a belated appeal. But I have to
do that essentially finding thét counsel failed to follow
the request of the client. 1In this instance what I have
is an attempted appeal that was not perfected because the
rules of court’apparéntly were not qomplied with. Thatfs
a completely different matter than counsel simply failing
to file the notice of intent to appeal.

And I don't know thét under this set of circumstances
that I have the authority to order an belated appeal when.
it isn't incident to deficient representation by counsel.
This was a deficient filing by the Applicant. And I don't
know under those circumstances, that I can order a belated
appéal. Therefore, I'll deny it on those grounds. If
there's any law out there that says something contrary to
what I have espoused, then give it to me and I'll be happy

to take a look at it. I derive no personal gratification
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23

from denying an appeal, I just don't know that I have the

authority under the law to do it.

MS. ROSS: All right, thank you, Judge.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MS. RATIGAN: Thank you, Your Honor.

(WHEREUPON, the proceedings were concluded.)
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CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )

: )
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE )

I, APRIL P. HERRON, Official Court Reporter for the
Thirteenth Judicial Circuit of the State of South

Carolina, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true,

accurate and complete Transcript of Record of the

proceedings had and evidence introduced in the .trial of
thelcaptioned case, relativé to appeal} in the Court Qf
Common Pleas for Greenville County, Sbuth‘Caroiina, on the
28th day of August, 2013. - |

I do further certify that I am neither of kin,

counsel nor interest to cany party hereto.

February 17, 2014

(;/\1#)mé%‘S¢?SQALJAJ“L/

APRII, P. HERRON, Court Reporter
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February 2, 2012

Joseph D. Urato #349299
- Kirkland Correctional Inst.
- CII-63 .
- 4344 Broad River Rd.
Columbia, SC 29210

Re: Request for PCR Application
Dear Mr. Urato: | Co : | L

We are in receipt of your letter postmarked 1/26/2012. Your letter has been filed with
2010-GS-2§-7946. Enclosed please find a copy of the PCR application as you requested.

. Smcerely, ,
. Paul B. chkensmer
Clerk of Court

Circuit Court Division ® Greenville County Courthouse ¢ 305 E. North St. eGreenville, SC 29601 e -
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TEIJB %uuth QEaruIma Court of Qppeals

JENNY ABBOTT KITCHINGS POST OFFICE BOX 11628 .
CLERK COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA 29211
1015 SUMTER STREET
" V.CLAIREALLEN . COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA 29204
DEPUTY CLERK TELEPHONE: (803} 734-1890
FAX: (803) 734-1839
Www.sccourts.org

August 03, 2012

Mr. Joseph Urato #349299
Lieber Corr. Inst.

Po Box 205

Ridgeville SC 29472

Re: Correspondence received May 1,2012

Dear Mr. Urato:

This office is in receipt of your letter received May 1, 2012. Please be
advised you do not have a case pending in the Court of Appeals. If you were
represented at trial by a Public Defender, appointed counsel or by retained counsel,
you should immediately contact that individual and advise them of your desire to
appeal. A notice of appeal must be served w1thm ten (10) days after sentence is
imposed.
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
C.A. No. 2012-CP-23-3617

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE

Joseph Dominick Urato,

)
)
)
)
S.C.D.C. No. 349299, . ) - =
) E_‘:: L
Applicant, ) i 3
) ORDER OF DISMISSAL: =
v. ; =
State of South Caroling, ) 2
. ) _
Respondent. ) =
Y

Tﬂis matter comes before the Court|by way of an appiication for post-conviction relief
(PCR) filed May 31, 2012. The Respondent|made its return on August 31, 2012. An evidentiary
hearing into the matter was convened on August 28, 2013 at the Greenville County Courthouse.
The Appliéant was present at the hearing and represented by Susannah C. Ross, Esquire. Karen
C. Ratigan, Esquire of tﬁq South Carolina Office of the Attorney General represented the
Respondent. |

The -Applicant testified on his own behalf at the PCR hearing. Also testifying was the
Applicant.’é plea Acounsel, Randall L. Chambers, Esquire. The Court had before it the transcript
of the guilty plea hearing, the Greenville County Clerk of Court records, the Applicant’s South
Carolina Department of Corrections records, the PCR application, the return, and the Applicant’s’

Exhibit 1.
PROCEDURAL HISTORY

The Applicant is confined in the South Carolina Department of Corrections pursuant to

orders of commitment from the Greenville County Clerk of Court. The Applicant was indicted

at the' July 2011 term of the Greenville County Grand Jury for two counts of bank robbery (2010-

vk
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GS-23-7945, -7946) ‘and conspiracy (2010 GS-23-7909). He was represented by kandall L.
Chambers, Esquire.
On Janvary 17, 2012, thel Applicant pled guilty. The Honorable Edward W. Miller
sentenced the Applicant to concurrent terms$ of thirty years suspended on service of eighteen
years and three years probation for one count of bank robbery,' thirty years suspended during
probation for the second count of bank robbery, and five years for conspiracy. The Applicant did
not appeal.
ALLEGATIONS

In his application, the Applicant alleges he is being held in custody unlawfully for the

following reasons:
1. Ineffective assistance of counsel.
a. “Lawyer advised me that if I plead I would get a 10 yrs nonvwlent
‘ sentence.”
2.  “Probation officer said it would be a 51% but SCDC has it as a nonviolent
85%.” ' '
3. - “Never entered bank that Iim charged with. Never saw or shown

indictment. I’ve been charged with wrong bank!!!”

At the PCR hearing, the Applicant proceeded upon the ground of ineffective assistance of

plea counsel. '

. FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
This Court has had the opportumty to review the record in its entirety and has heard the
‘ testimony and arguments presented gt thel PCR hearing. This _Court has further had the |
oppoftunity to observe each witness who testified at the fxearing, and to closely pass uporn their
credibility. This Court has weighed the testimony accordingly.

Set forth below are the relevant findings of fact and conclusions of law as required by

! 2010-GS-23-7946.

g7




' S.C. Code Ann. § 17-27-80 (2003)
Ineffective Assistance of Counsel
The Applicant alleges he received ineffective assistz;nce of 'coﬁnsel. In a PCR action,
“[tThe burden .of proof is on the applicant to prove his dleéations by a preponderance of the
evidence.” Frasier v. State, 351 S.C. 385, 359, 570 S.E.2d 172, 174 (2002).
For an applicant to beg granted PCR| as a result of ineffective assistance of counsel, he
must show both: (1) that hi; couns;-:l failed to render reasonably effective assistance under

prevailing professional norms, and (2) that he was p'réjudiced by his counsel’s .ineffective

performance. l_S_c_g Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 104 S. Ct. 2052 (1984);. Porter v,
State, 368 S.IC. 378, 383, 629 S..E.2d 353, 356 (2006). When there has been a guilty plea, the
applicant must prove that couﬁsel’g representation was below the standard of reasonableness and
~ that, but for counsel’s unprofessional errors] there is a reasonable probability that he would not
have pled guilty and would have insisted on géing to trial. Hill v. Lockhart? 474 U.S. 52, 58-59,
106 S. Ct. 366, 370 (1985); Roscoe v. State, 345 S.C. 16, 20, 546 S.E.Zd 417, 419 (2001).

The Applicant stéted he planned on gping to trial the day he weant to court. The Applicant
stated plea counsel told.him hie would receive a ten-year non-violent sentence if he pled guilty.

The Applicant stated he éigncd the plea paperwork without reading it. The Applicant stated he

told the plea judge he .was guilty, agreed'with the State’s recitation of the facts, and was

“absolutely satisfied” with plea counsel because he believed he was going to receive a ten-yeér
sentence. The Applicant stated he only plec guilty because hc_: thought he would receive a ten-
year sentence. The Applicant stated he did not understand what was happening at the plea
hearing when there was:discuséion about amending the indictment. The Applicant stated the

Court of Appeals subsequently told him there was no appeal in his case.

}//7
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Plea counsel testified he filed discovery motions, received those materials, and reviewed -

them with the Applicant. Plea counsel testified-they also'discussed the impact of the co-

defendant’s statement and the Applicant’s version of events. Plea counsel testified the majority

of the discussions with the Applicant conce

-

med the Applicant’s desire for these charges to be

handled in federal court. Plea counsel testified the case was on the trial docket the day the

Applicant pled guilty. Plea counsel testified he told the Applicant there was overwhelming'

evidence against him and that he would likcl»:l'y be convicted. Plea counsel testified he told the

probably said he would try and get a ten-y
indictment had aiready been amended prior

nothing wrong with the decision to amend

-Applicant that he would be pleading guilti} without a sentence recommendation but that he

ear sentence. Plea counsel testified he thought the
o the plea hearing. Plea counsel testified there was

the indictment. Plea counsel testified he probably

discussed the amendment with the Applicant during the plea hearing and did not recall the

Applicant had any problem with it.

Regarding the Applicant’s claims of ineffective assistanée of counsel, this Court finds the

Applicant has failed to meet his burden of proof. This Court finds the Applicant’s testimony is

not credible, while also finding plea counsel’s testimony is credible. This Court further finds

plea counsel adequately conferred with the i}pplicant, conducted a proper investigation, and was

thoroughly competent in his representation.

The Applicant admitted to the plea ju

dge both that he was guilty and that the facts recited

by the solicitor were true. (Plea transcript, pp.6-7; p.11). The Applicant also told the plea judge

" and had not been coerced in any way. (Plea

This Court finds the Applicant failed

that he understood the trial rights he was waiving in plcading‘ guilty, was satisfied with counsel,

transcript, pp.5-7);

-to meet his burden of proving plea counse! said he

X




would receive a teﬁ year sentence if he pled guilty. Initially, this Court notes the Applicant has
not presented any cfedible evidence in the form of documentation or testimony that a plea offer
for a ten-year sentence ever existed. The sentence sheets signed by Applicant indicate the plea
was entered without a recommendation. Plea counsel testified he never told the Applicant there
was a ten-year recommendation or that he would receive such a sentence. This Court finds pleé
coimsel’$ testimony is credible. While plea counsel did ask the plea judge for a seven or eight
year sentencé, this Court notes there is no mention in the plea transcript}of a ten-year sentence.
(Plea transcript,. p.14). While the Applicant rfnay have hoped for a ten-year sentence, he was not

- advised that he would receive such. See Holden v. State, 713 S.E.2d 611, 617, 393 S.C. 565,

- 575-76 (2011) (citing Roddy v. State, 339 SIC. 29, 36, 528 S.E.Zc} 418, 422 (2000)) (“Wishful
thinking regarding sentencing does not equal a misapprehension concerning the possible range of
sentences, especially where one acknowledges on the record that one knows the range of
sentences énd that no promises have been made.”). The Applicant never mentioned he. was
pleading guilty in exchange for a ten-yéar sentence and, in fact, told the plea judge he had not
been made any promises in exchange for .hié_g;uilty pleas. (Plea transcript, p.6). This Court finds
the ‘Applicant’s allegation that plea counsel advised -him that he would receive a ten-year

sentence is refuted by the plea transcript. See Stalk v. State, 375 S.C. 289, 300, 652 S.E.2d 402,

407 (Ct. App. 2007); see also Rayford v. State, 314 S.C. 46, 48-49, 443 S.E.2d 805, 806 (1994)

(where transcript of guilty plea proc-eed.ing.re futed applicant’s claim that he .did not understand
the terms of a plea bargain, grant of PCR whs inappropriate notwithstanding applicant’s claim
lawyer misadvised him). | |

This Court finds the Applicant failed to meéet his burden of proving plea counsel did not

properly advise him about amending the indictment. At the guilty plea hearing, the assistant

1%
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solicitor noted indictment 2010-GS-23-794

6 should have been amended to read First Savers

Bank as the location, not W/achovia. Plea counsel testified he was aware this amendment would

take place. (Plea transcript, pp.7-9). The
problems with the amendment of the indict
counsel properly explained the amendment

judge they had previously discussed the iss

Applicant did not tell the plea judge he had any
ment. (Plea transcript, p.11). This Court finds ;;lea
issue to the Appiicant.' Plea counsel told the plea

ue and the Applicant indicated he did not have a

problem with the indictment. (Plea transcript, p.11). The plea transcript, therefore, refutes the

Applicant’s claim. See Stalk v. State, 375

notes indictments are merely notice docume

S.C. at 300, 652 S.E.2d at 407. . Further, this Court

nts and it is clear from plea counsel’s testimony that

he was on notice that this améhdment would take place. See State v. Gent;y., 363 S.C. 93, 102,

610 S.E.2d 494, 500 (2005).

This Court finds the Applicant faile

d to meet his burden of proving he is entitled to a -

review of his direct appeal issues. The Applicant has failed to present ény‘evidence that he asked

plea counsel to file an appeal. Without such

evidence, this Court cannot speculate about whether

appellate review of the Applicant’s guilty plea hearing is warranted.

Accordingly, this Court finds the Applicant has failed to prove the first prong of the .

Strickland test — that plea counsel failed|{to render reasonably effective assistance under

prevailing professional norms. The Applicant failed to present specific and compélling evidence

that plea.counsel committed either errors o omissions in his representation of the Applicant.

was prejudiced by plea counsel’s performance.

. This Court also finds the Appliéant has failed to prove the second prong of Strickland — that he -

This Court concludes the Applicant has not met his burden of proving counsel failed to

render reasonably effective assistance. This|Court also concludes the Applicant has failed to

6
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meet his burden of proving his guilty plea was

351S.C. at 389, 570 S.E.2d at 174.

not knowing and voluntary. See Frasier v. State,

All Other AlleggA tions

~ As to any and all allegations that were raised in the application or at the hearing in this

matter and not specifically addressed in this Order, this Court finds the Applicant failed to

present any testimony, argument, or evidence at the hearing regarding such allegations.

Accordingly, this Court finds the Applicant has abandoned any such allegations.

CONCLUSION

Based on all the fb;egoing, this Churt finds and concludes the Applicant has not

established any constitutional violations or deprivations before or during his guilty plea and

sentencing proceedings. Counsel was not deficient in any manner and the Applicant was not

prejudiced by counsel’s representation. Therefore, this PCR application must be denied and

dismissed with prejudice. .

This Court advises the Applicant that he must file a notice of intent to appeal within thirty

(30) days from the receipt of this Order if he

wants to secure appropriate appellate review. His

attention is also directed to Rules 203, 206, and 243 of the South Carolina Appellate Court Rules

for the appropriate procedures to follow after; notice of intent to appeal has been timely filed.
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IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED:

L That the application for post
dismissed with prejudice; and

2, That the Applicant be remanded

'AND IT IS SO ORDERED this _Z5

/
obin % %tilwell

. f . <.
é £-7¢ £, South Carolina.

<

7
 dayof_gCZ __,2013.

Lconviction relief be denied and

to the custody of the Respondent.

>

P
T

residing Judge
hirteenth Judicial Circuit
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INDICTMENT FOR
, ) BANK ROBBERY
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE )
: !
At a Court.of General Sessions, convened on JUL 19 20" the Grand Jurors of Greenville

County present upon their oath:

That JOSEPH DOMINICK URATO did in Greepville County, on or about the 27th day of July, 2010, enter the
Arthur State Bank, located at 1410 N. Pleasantburg Drive, Greenville, South Carolina, with intent to steal money,
securities for money, or property, either by force, intimidation or threats. This is in violation of §16-11-0380 of

the South Carolina Code of Laws (1976) as amended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and provided.

S —

SOLICITHR




- STATE 9]' SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
COUNTY OF Greenville ; '
STATE VS. ' ) INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2010GS2307945
o Joseph Dominick Urato ) A/WE 1481789 )
ARA: )  Dateof Offense: _7/27/2010
Race; WHITE _Sex M Age: 40 ) S.C.Code § :_16-11-0380
DOB: ww =< - Ss#: ¢ )  CDRCode#: _ 0257
Address: )
- City,StateZip:  Greenville, SC 29607
DL#: v g SENTENCE SHEET
*CDL Yes[] No[] CMV Yes[] No[[] HazmatYes("] No[]
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was [0 CONVICTED OF or XIPLEADS
TO: Robbery / Entering bank, depository or bldg and loan association with intent to steal )
inviolationof § 16-11-0380 of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0257
NON-VIOLENT O VIOLENT [X]SERIOUS [:]MOST SERIOUS [JMandatory GPS(CSC [J617-25-45
N ’ w/minor 1st or Lewd Act)
The chargeis: [X] Asindicted, [JLesser Included Offense, DDefendant Wuves Presentment to Grand Jury. (defendant's initials)
Without Negotiations or Recommendation, [J Negoti _ Recommendation by the State. '

;
SCB° . SC Bar#
Sta

WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the te Department of Corrections, [] County Detention Center,

for a determinate term of 30 Jayelmenths/yearsor [ under the Youthful Offender Act not to exceed ’ years
and/or to pay a fine of § ; provided that upon the service of \days/months/years and/or payment

of $4 ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balon for

months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard condltxons of

probation, which are incorporated by reference.
CONCURRENT or {T] CONSECUTIVE to sentence on:
[Z/The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied

by the State Department of Corrections. 5.2(
[] The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal

Domestic Violenee) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammanition.
SPECIAL CONDITIONS:

[(JRESTITUTION: [[] Deferred [] Def. Waives Hearing [ ]Ordered  PTUP

Total: $ plus 20% fee: S days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: Obtain GED 0 ’
[J Set by SCDPPPS: Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.
— May serve W/E begining
Recipient: . Substance Abuse Counseling (]
*Fine: $ ~ Random Drug/Alcohol testing a
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) $ . Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(AX1) (Conv. Surcharge) $100 $ /v pmts. of § beginning
14-1-211(A)(2) (DUI Surcharge) $100 3 .
g 56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment) $i2 5 ofh — paid to Pub}tc Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 % er:
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 [
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) -$25 $ Qrr
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 3
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50 L3
§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Asscssment) 340/ea § ] Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) 85 $ Ky § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3%to County (if paid in installments) § ’ during probation.
TOTAL $ &
) . Presiding Judge ZQ:( W M
Clerk of Court Deputy etk (ud A+ L) sobiposo  JudgeCode: .~ 2132
Court Reporter: C. M3 et/ Sentence Date: ()71 2

SCCA/217 (03/2011)
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oy

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INDICTMENT FOR
- . ) _ ~ CONSPIRACY
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE )
, A
. At a Court of General Sessions, convened on JUL 19 2011 : the Grand Jurors of Greenville

County present upon their oath:

That JOSEPH DOMINICK URATO did in Greenville County, on or about the 27th day of July through the 30th
day of July, 2010, willfully and unlawfully combine with DEBORAH PITTMAN BASLER for the purpose of
accomplishing an unlawful object or a lawful object by unlawful means, to wit: bank robbery. This is in violation

of §16-17-410 of the South Carolina Code of Laws (1976) as amended.

[

3

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in su and provided.




ARREST WARRANT

|-482093

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

&)

A0

[x] Cowty [] Muiepaity o gAv
Greenville
THE STATE 10-125786
against
: Josﬂ Dominick Urato -
" Address: , R g e
Greenville, SC 29607-

Phone: SSN:

Sec M Ruce: W Height 5 9 Weight 190

DL Stes~ g :

DOB:

Agency ORI ¥ SC0230000

Prosecuting Agency:  Greenville County Sheriffs Office

Prosecuting Offcer. ~ David Weiner - 0630

Oftanze: Conspiracy / Criminal Conspiracy, Common Law
conspiracy defined

Oftense Codea; 0049

Codo/Ordinance Sec:  16-17-0410

TR wamant @ CERTIFIED FOR SERVICE in the |

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA Py pantairiid

) ORIGINAL 8.C.
K] Couty  [[] Municpeyot ) AFFIDAVIT g
Greenville ) *
Personally gppeared before me We effant David Weiner ‘ who

being duly swom deposes and says that defendant Joseph Dominick Urato
did within this county and state on orabout  ()7/30/2010
State of South Carolina (or ordinance of @ County/
in the following particulars:

Wokals The Gimingd Taws ofthe.
Greenville )

D Municipality of

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE  Cqnspiracy / Criminal Conspiracy, Common Law conspiracy defined

| further atale that there is probable cause W believe that the defendant nsmed above did commit

the cime set forth and that probable cause is based an the following facis:

On 7-30-10 the defendant and codefendant did plan and conspire to commit a robbery, The defendant was found crouched behind
his vehicle near the Wachovia Bank located at 19 W. Lewis Plaza. When approached by officers be was found to be in possession
of a scarf to conceal his identity as well as rubber gloves and a canvas bag. The affiant also has a codefendants wrilten statement
that the defendant was preparing to enter the bank to commit a robbery. This offense occurred in Greeaville County.

SIglmueo;‘Amant —D/p L xzigﬁ_ &2l

DCountyl Duumapamyof
. The accused
® © be anmesied and broughl before me  lo be
deall with according to the taw.
Ls)
Bapalurs of Judge
Date:
RETURN )
A copy of s defivered to
defendant ) ik o
on 1%/ 70
Lig ¥

| SM&'@ 4/’-4«-055‘15 JM Ay
|

RETURN WARRANT TO:
Greenville General Sessions
305 E. North Street
Greeaville County Courthouse
Greenville, SC 29601-2120

fered

ORIGINAL ORIGINAL

ORIGINAL

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) :
Affiants Address 4 Mcgee Street
Countyf Municipelity of
k] (] Muncpelty ) Greenville, SC 29601-
Greenville

Amants Telaphone (864)467-5252

ARREST WARRANT

TO ANY LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER OF THIS STATE OR MUNICIPALITY OR ANY CONSTABLE OF THIS COUNTY:
i appearing from the dbove aMdavit that there o/e reasonable grounds to befieve that

on orabot 7/30/2010 defendant  Joseph Dominick Urato
did violste the criminal faws of the State of South Caroina (or ordinance of

K] Courty D Municipelityof  Greenville

) 9o set forth bolow:

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE: Conspiracy / Criminal Conspiracy, Common Law conspiracy defined

Having found probable cause and the ebave affiant having swam before me, you are empowerad and directed to afrest the sald defandant and bring him or

her belore me forthwith to be deatl with atcording to law. A copy of this Amest Warrant shall be deiivered 1o the defendant at the Eme of its execution, or as
200n thareafter as s practicable
Sworn 10 and subscribed bafora me

)
o 081132910 ) udge's Addvess 20 Mcgee St
i ®©s) ) Greenville, SC 29601~
) .
)

Gaybriel Gibson Judge's Telephone
ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL 'ORIGINAL




B . - = PN, "

75

IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

' {) STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
COUNTY OF Greenville ; ,,
STATE VS. ) INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2010GS2307909
Joseph Dominick Urato ) AWE 1482093
AKA: ' , ) Date of Offense: _1/30/2010
Race: WHITE Sex: M Age: 40 S.C.Code § ;_16-17-0410
DOB: #: ) '
: __SS#: )  CDRCode#: __ 0049
Address: )
Clty s.State’le: Gr Qenville. Sc 29?07 ) SENTENCE SHEET
DL#. SID#: ) -
*CDL Yes[] No[] CMV Yes[[] No[] Hazmat Yes[] No(] _
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was ] CONVICTED OF or XIPLEADS
TO: Conspiracy / Criminal Conspiracy, Common Law conspiracy defined
in violationof § 16-17-0410 __ of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0049
NON-VIOLENT [0 VIOLENT DSERIOUS [JMOST SERIOUS [(IMandatory GPS(CSC [1§17-25-45
" w/minor 1st or Lewd Act) ’ i
The charge is: - Q] As Indicted, [JLesser Included Offenss, [ ]Defendant Walves Presentment to Grand Jury. (defendant's initials)
The pleais: . [X]Without Negotiations or Recommendation, -, S ce, Recommendation by the State.
% (2, 736ey 0%
ory, Jonathan M. SC Bar# A r Defendant SC Bar# R
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commjted to the State Department of Corrections, [ County Detention Center,
for a determinate term of mnmﬂn/years or [J underthe Youthful Offender Act not to exceed years

__\ days/months/years and/or payment
RECproBation for

and/or to pay a fine of $ ; provided that upon the service of
of $ ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance e

L SUSEETTUNN

months/years and subject to* South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
probation, which are incorporated by reference.

NCURRENT or (] CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: . . ' )
The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to §.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied

by the State Department of Corrections. \f
{1 The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is nnlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal

Domestic Vlolenee )to shlp,tran:port,yonus,or receive a firearm or ammunition,
SPECIAL CONDITIONS: : By

[(JRESTITUTION: [] Deferred 7] Def. WaivesHearlog [ ] Ordered  PTUP

Total: § plus 20% fee: $ __. days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: ) Obtain GED 0
[J Set by SCDPPPS " Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.
S— " May serve W/E begining
Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling ~ [J
*Fine: . $ -~ Random Drug/Alcohol testing = [
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) $ Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Conv. “Srtcuh;rharie) ::gg : /60 pmts. of § beginning
14-1-211(AX2) (DUI S ge .
g 56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment) $12 S $ _______ paidto Public Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 7§ Other:
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 [3
§ '14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 $ K7
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 $
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) . §50 $ .
§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ca _§ ] Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) $3 $ $” § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3%to County (if paid in installments) $ during probation.
$

Judge Code: _ 2130
Court Reporter: . o C Moo bat/ _Sentence Date: £={7- 42

SCCA/217 (03/201 l)

TOTAL ~
* - Presiding Judge M
Clerk of Court/ Deputy Clerk .
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vs.
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0257
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VIOLATION § 16-11-0380
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STATE OF SOUTHCAROLINA ) AMENDED INDICTMENT FOR
) BANK ROBBERY
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE ) :
At a Court of General Sessions, gbnvened on DEC 2 0 20” the Grand Jurors of Greenville
County present upon their oath: ' '

That JOSEPH DOMINICK URATO did in Greenville County, on or a;bout the 30th day of July, 2010, enter the
First Savers Bank, located at 1818 Augusta Street, Greenville, South Carolina, with intent to steal money,
securities for money, or property, either by force, intimidation, or threats. This is in violation of §16-11-0380 of

the South Carolina Code of Laws (1976) as amended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statufg/in such case made and provided.

(e

N / SOLICITOR




ARREST WARRANT

1-482092

STATE OF SOUTH CARCLINA

N

[x] Countwr . [T] Municipetty of ot
Greenville
THE STATE 10-125786
ageinst
loseph Dominick Urato
\ddress: )
Greenville, SC 29607-

hone: ssN
;.x_y_am-w Height 5 9 Weight - 190
U State: ~ %
o ... Agency ORI®. SC0230000

‘rosecuting Agency:  Grreenville County Sheriffs Office

'rosecuting OMocer: ~ David Weiner - 0630

Mense: Robbery / Attempted robbery (charge as principal
offense)

ffensas Code: 0025

sode/Ordinance Secc  C/L,

= wanant @ CERTFIED  FOR  SERVICE & 0o

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) ORIGINAL ;‘é‘@"ﬁ.ﬁ:
K] Coumyt  [] Munkcipaity of ) AFFIDAVIT ‘ -
Greenville ) ' ’

. Parsonally appeared before me the affant David Weiner ) who

being duly swom deposes and says that defendst  Joseph Dominick Urato
Gd within this county end state on orabout  7/30/2010
Stats of Sout Carolina {or ardinance of -counlyl
in the foliowing perticulars;

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE  Robbery / Attempted robbery (charge as principal offensc)

“violaia he cniminal sws of the
Greenville )

Dumiebeiwof

ammmuuemmmmwwmm

mmmmmmm
the crime set forth and that

.probabie causs is based on the following facts:

On 7-30-10 the defendant and codefendant did plan and conspire to commit a robbery. The defendant was found crouched bebind
his vehicle near the Wachovia Bank located at 19 W. Lewis Plaza. When approached:by officers he was found to be in possession
of a scarf to conoeal his identity as well as rubber gloves and a canvas bag. The affiant also has a codefendants written statement
that the defendant was preparing to enter the bank to commit a robbery. This offense oocurved in Greenville County.

oy

:|0oumyt E]Mmlebanwm

. The accueed
1 to ba arested and broughl before me to be
lsafl with acconding to. the law.

s)
. Clgwhue of Juge
Jate:
\ cnpy of el‘vued fo ,
_;'Zg?T itk _tlesro
. /j /o

IETURN WARRANT TO:
Greenville General Sessions
305 E. North Street
Greenville County Courthouse
Greenville, SC 29601-2120

ORIGINAL

@

ORIGINAL

ORIGINAL

sz \
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA . 4
] countst ] Municipattyof ’ Greenvnlle 3 35801~
Greenville

Affiants Telephone (864)4?7-5252

ARREST WARRANT

TO ANY LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER OF THIS STATE OR MUNICIPALITY OR ANY CONSTABLE OF THIS COUNTY: :
It seppearing from the wbove affidevil that there are reesonable grounds to  believe that

on orabout  7/30/2010 dofendant JosgghDominick Urato
did vidlate the ciminal laws of the State of South Carolina (or ordinance of

K] County  [T] Municipaityof  Greenville

) es set forth below:

- DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE: Robbery / Attempled robbery (charge as principal oﬂhilse)

Having found probable couse and the above aMant having swom before me, you &re empowered.and 'Mhmmwdemandbﬂmmnu
her before:me forthwith to ba daall with according {0 lew. A capy of this Amest Wanant shall ba delivered to the defendant at the time of its execution, o as
200n theveafler as is practicable

Swom {0 and subscribed befors me )
= of3not0 - } judge's Address 20 Mcgee St |
qfdjL/ ws) ) Greeaville, SC 29601-
Gaybriel Gibson  dudoe's Telephons
Judge Code: 5032 )  tsuingCout [x] Magistrate - [ Municipat [] cireuit
" ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL



{) STATEOFSOUTHCAROLINA = -
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) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS -
COUNTY OF . Greenville ) .
STATE ~ VS, )" INDICTMENT/CASE# __ 2010GS2307946
: J oseph Dominick Urato ) A/W#: 1482092
AKA: )  Dateof Offense: _1/30/2010
Race; WHITE = Sexx M Age: 40 ) S.C.Code § :_16-11-0380
DOB: __Ss# : ) CDR Code #: 0257
Address: i 3 ) )
City,State,Zip Greenville, SC 29607
DL#: Sihé: % SENTENCE SHEET
*CDL Yes[] No[] CMV Yes[] No[] HazmatYes[] No[]
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was [0 CONVICTEDOF or XIPLEADS
TO: Robbery / Entering Bank, Depository Or B
in violation of § - 16-11-0380 of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0257
X NON-VIOLENT 0 VIOLENT m SERIOUS | [’_'_IMOST smuous [ JMandatory GPS(CSC [1§17-2545
C e - - wiminor 1st'or Lewd Act)
The chargc is: X As Ind:cted, E]Lesser Included Offense, []Dcfendant Wmves Presentment to Grand Jury. (defendant’s initials)
ithout Negotiations or Recommendation, S FQ @ Recommendatlon by the State.
PHoy ; [EXIDN
an M., SC Bar# Atto)ney for D’Tendant : SCB:

WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the State Department of Corrections, [] County Detention Center,

for a determinate term of Do daystmonths/years or ] under the Youthful Offender Act not to exceed years
and/or to pay a fine of $ ; provided that upon the service of 8’ dayvmonthafyears and/or payme payment

of $ ' ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probatien for

_menths/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of

probation, which are incorporated by reference.
] CONCURRENT or [J CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: . '
B’ﬁe Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied

by the State Department of Corrections. 8"} e Ox5
(] The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Reglstry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135,

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to shlp,transpon,poam,or receive a firearm or ammunition.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
Bé'rrrv’nom [ Deferred [] Def. Waives Hearing [ 1Ordered  PTUP
Total;: $ __~ plus20%fee: ___$ : days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: . [2XThi ObtainGED []
O Set by SCOPPPS : Attend Voc. Rehab, or Job Corp.
— May serve W/E begining pd

Recipient: ~ Substance Abuse Counseling B/
*Fine: . ' $ Random Drug/Alcohol testing
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) $ - Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge) $100 S TR pmis, of § beginning
§ 14-1-211(A)(2) (DUI Surcharge) $100 $ . .
§ 56-5-2995 DUl Assessment)  S12 _§ $ paid to Public Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 3 Other:
Proviso 47.9 (Public DefProb) $500 $
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 $ rYa
§ 14-1213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 - §
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50 [
§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea _§ Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) 35 $ Vs § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3%to County (if paid in installments) $ during probation.

$

TOTAL
* Presiding Judge ,—K’JA/ M’L@

Clerk of Court/ Deputy Clerk _Z&«_é_ﬁ_ﬁlaﬁam Judge Code: 21 3 P)
Court Reporter: C.  Hikeil Sentence Date: L1742

SCCA17 (03/2011) Prbaton e o€br completon £ pny ear\\‘ celesie Pcrs;z.mh




